
 
 

1 
 

Executive Committee  
Meeting Minutes  

Wednesday, July 24, 2013, 9:00 a.m. 
DOE Information Center 

  
 

Committee Members Present Others Present 

Dave Hemelright, Chair 
Scott McKinney 
Greg Paulus  
Corkie Staley 
 
Absent 
Bob Hatcher 
 

Dave Adler, DOE 
Alfreda Cook, ORSSAB 
Pete Osborne, ORSSAB support office  
Lorene Sigal, ORSSAB Stewardship Committee 
 
 

Board Officer/DOE Comments 
  
None. 
 
Monthly Board Meetings 
 
Annual Meeting - Mr. Hemelright said that planning for the annual meeting is going well. Mr. Osborne noted 
that the Friday night dinner will be held at JT Hannah’s restaurant next to the Holiday Inn.  
 
September 11 - The presentation topic will be an update on the Transuranic Waste Processing Center.  
 
October 9 - Mr. Hemelright asked about the groundwater workshop presentation and if DOE was considering 
holding the presentation in a larger venue. Mr. Adler said he’s inclined to do this presentation at the DOEIC 
and maybe do something at a larger location when the final groundwater workshop report is issued. 
 
Committee Reports 
 
Board Finance & Process - The current costs table was distributed as Attachment 1. Mr. Paulus reported that 
DOE has proposed an $18K cut in the FY 2015 ORSSAB budget request. He asked if the SSAB can stop 
doing things such as the Advocate newsletter in order to meet the proposed reduction.  
 
Mr. Adler said he thought a lot of cost reductions have already been made, and as Delisa Atwater stated 
during at this evening’s Board Finance & Process Committee meeting, her proposal is just a starting point. He 
said he would like to know what cost cutting measures have already been done and the basis for the proposed 
reduction. He would then like to make his own evaluation of the situation before the SSAB weighs in.  
 
Mr. Paulus noted that Ms. Atwater also wants to take control of carryover SSAB funds, rather than showing 
them in the SSAB’s costs table.  
 
EM - Ms. Cook reported that discussion on David Martin’s revised draft recommendation on nickel 
disposition was postponed until the August meeting to allow more time for discussion of the proposed merger 
of the EM and Stewardship committees. Also at the meeting, Carmen Delong provided an overview of a 
process she developed for eliminating waste in waste management activities. She requested SSAB support to 
present a paper on this process at the upcoming Waste Management Symposium. The committee moved to 
forward the request to the Executive Committee for further discussion. 



 
 

2 
 

On July 17, the EM and Stewardship committees held a joint meeting to discuss pros and cons of a merger of 
the committees. A lengthy discussion covered the importance of working together such that key focus areas 
would not get lost in transition and the need to compile lists of each committee’s objectives and activities to 
share and compare.  
 
The next combined meeting is planned for August 26 at 5:30 p.m. 
 
Mr. Adler remarked that what would be helpful near-term is combining the two committees’ outputs into a 
comprehensive schedule rather than work plan. His thinks it would be good for the group to see the proposed 
12-month schedule at the August 26 meeting to determine if it’s workable. He’d like to get away from the all-
or-nothing concept of a merger and focus more on whether the merger is feasible from a scheduling 
standpoint.  
  
Stewardship - Ms. Staley said she had no additions to Ms. Cook’s report.  
 
Public Outreach - Mr. McKinney reported that at its July teleconference, the committee reviewed its FY 2013 
accomplishments, including the Advocate newsletter, YouTube videos, other media. The stream postings task 
was closed out this year, and the ORSSAB presentation was revised.  
 
Nominating - Mr. McKinney said the four members of the committee divided up the board roster and called 
members to see if they’re interested in a board office. The committee will have a call tomorrow night to 
discuss the results and should have the slate of candidates ready thereafter. Ms. Staley noted that she had not 
been contacted yet. Mr. McKinney offered to find out why. 
 
Other Business 
 
Proposed Merger of the Stewardship and EM Committees - Mr. Hemelright said Ms. Cook presented the plan 
succinctly: move slow but make progress on moving toward a merger. He said he is in favor of the merger as 
a way to provide more people to get the work done.  
 
Ms. Staley said she can’t name anyone against the merger; it’s just a matter of taking the time to get it done 
properly. A few of the issues the Stewardship Committee has come up with that they feel strongly about (in 
addition to the activities and goals list that was sent to staff today) include the following: 
 The combined committee should have co-chairs. 
 Spencer Gross should be retained as staff for the committee. 
 The stewardship aspect should have some independence—not to meet separately, but there are some very 

specific stewardship issues that will not go away in the merger. 
 Long-term stewardship resources need to secured.  
 Discussion and consideration of the work overload at the monthly meetings should be addressed. 
 A Headquarters contact for long-term stewardship should be assured. 
 ORSSAB members should be educated about long-term stewardship. 
 
Mr. McKinney said he thought that long-term stewardship would make a good board presentation. Ms. Staley 
agreed, and suggested it be done by or at least assisted by someone well versed in the issue.  
  
Mr. Adler asked Ms. Staley to email him the list. 
 
Mr. Paulus said that his experience has been that when committees are combined that membership does not 
increase but rather can drop, leaving fewer people to do more work.  
 



 
 

3 
 

Ms. Cook said that does not have to be the case. She said that if you do not disperse activities among 
committee members, they do not become involved. The committee chairs should do that to keep people 
involved. 
 
Mr. Hemelright suggested the issue be discussed at the annual meeting. 
 
Ms. Staley said a combined committee should be aware that there have always been more public members 
than board members on the Stewardship Committee, and she does not think we’ll lose the public members. 
They are very committed, and she anticipates picking up more. Ms. Sigal said the public members will feel 
strongly about holding their own in a larger committee setting.  
 
Waste Management Abstract - The committee reviewed an abstract for a 2014 Waste Management 
Symposium paper by Carmen DeLong (Attachment 2).  
 
Ms. Staley said she is concerned about the abstract because during the presentation to the EM committee she 
got the impression that it was a sales pitch. Ms. DeLong said she was asked to present the abstract, but no one 
is asked to present conference papers….it’s an optional activity. The process described is not a product or tool 
that the SSAB has approved of, so she’s concerned about that aspect.  
 
Ms. Cook agreed, noting that the abstract focuses on some negative aspects of waste management activities 
that are not normally aired at conferences.  
 
Mr. Hemelright also agreed and questioned whether the SSAB would be funding what might be personally 
beneficial to someone or detrimental to other people. A lot of Headquarters people will be at the conference, 
he noted, and if they see this they may think the SSAB is funding this or is behind it.  
 
Ms. Sigal said it’s not an SSAB product…it’s Ms. DeLong’s own personal business. Ms. DeLong would be 
representing the SSAB at the conference, but the presentation does not represent SSAB work. Ms. Sigal said 
she’s been to the Waste Management Symposium twice, and the papers she gave were on the End Use 
Working Group and the Stewardship Working Group, which were very tied to SSAB work.  
 
Mr. Adler said DOE does not seek advice on systems such as those Ms. DeLong is talking about. If she 
attends the conference through SSAB funding, she needs to be told she cannot present the paper. If her 
company sends her, it would be prudent to remind her not to identify herself as an SSAB member. 
 
Ms. Staley made a motion that the Executive Committee decline to support submission of the abstract. 
Mr. McKinney seconded the motion, and it passed unanimously.  
 
Action Items 

Open 

1. Ms. Staley will email Mr. Adler her list of stewardship considerations.  

Closed 

1. Staff will add an item the annual meeting agenda for discussion of the details of the Stewardship/EM 
committee merger. Carryover from 6/20/13. Closed 

Next meeting 
 
Wednesday, August 28, 5:30 p.m., at the DOE Information Center 
 
Attachments (2). Available upon request from the ORSSAB support office. 



 
 

4 
 

plo 


